
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2013 2 

SISTER BAY VILLAGE HALL – 10693 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The December 10, 2013 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to 6 
order by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:05 PM. 7 
 8 
Present:  President Lienau and Trustees Pam Abshire, Donna Scattergood, Scott Baker, John 9 
Clove, Pat Duffy, and Shane Solomon.    10 
 11 
Staff Members: Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator, Robert Kufrin, Consultant, Juliana 12 
Neuman, Finance Director, and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 13 
 14 
Others:  Christy Sully and Mike and Millie Walker 15 
 16 
Approval of minutes as published: 17 
As to the minutes for the November 12, 2013 meeting of the Village Board: 18 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker to approve the minutes for the November 19 
12, 2013 meeting of the Village Board as presented. Motion carried - All ayes. 20 
 21 
Comments and Correspondence: 22 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded. He then in-23 
troduced Laddie Chapman, the Director of the Public Access television station in Sevastopol, 24 
who stated that this meeting will be recorded and in a few days broadcast on Charter Channel 25 
986 as well as YouTube.  26 
 27 
Jackson noted that the following correspondence had been included in the meeting packets: 28 

    A letter from representatives of Donohue & Associates concerning the status of the Util-29 
ity Construction Project;    30 

    A thank you letter from the Old Glory Honor Flight Association for a donation made in 31 
memory of Art Walrabenstein; 32 

    A thank you letter from the Sister Bay Historical Society for a donation made in 33 
memory of Ken Kutlik; and, 34 

    A letter from Josh VanLieshout, the Chairperson of the Door County Tourism Zone 35 
Commission, concerning Assembly Bill 385.  36 

 37 
New Business Items: 38 
Item No. 1. Consider a motion to adopt Resolution No. 276, which recognizes the service of 39 
Mike Walker: 40 
Lienau noted that Mike Walker, who served as the Assessor for the Village for over thirty years, 41 
retired at the end of 2013. He then read Resolution No. 276, which formally recognizes Walk-42 
er’s service and was signed by all the Board members aloud, and presented that document as 43 
well as a plaque to Walker. 44 
 45 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that Resolution No. 276, an expression of 46 
thanks and appreciation to Mike Walker for over thirty years of service as the Municipal Valuer, 47 
(Assessor), for the Village of Sister Bay, be passed and adopted as presented. Motion carried – 48 

2



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

 

-2- 

All ayes. 1 
 2 
Walker thanked the Board members for the recognition and pointed out that he has been the 3 
Assessor for the Village of Sister for “nearly half his life”.  4 
 5 
Item No. 2. Update on the beach project, the pavilion project and the Bay Shore Drive Re-6 
construction project: 7 
JJR will be working on resolving the issues which resulted in excess bids being received for the 8 
Beach Project. Once all the issues are resolved the project will again be let for bids. It is quite 9 
likely that work will not commence on the Beach Project until Fall of 2014.  10 
 11 
The bids for the Pavilion Project again came in a little higher than had been expected. A meet-12 
ing with the donors has been scheduled. Jackson will keep the Board members advised of the 13 
status of this issue. 14 
 15 
Due to the unseasonably cold weather work will be delayed on the Utility Construction Project 16 
until sometime in March. 17 
 18 
Item No. 3. Consider a motion to approve Resolution No. 274, which establishes convenience 19 
fees for utility bill processing: 20 
A number of Utility customers have requested that they be allowed to pay their quarterly bills 21 
by electronic means. The Utility Clerk did a significant amount of research regarding this issue 22 
and recently presented her findings to the Utilities Committee, which has recommended that 23 
Payment Service Network be retained. A draft of an applicable Resolution was included in the 24 
meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed that document. 25 
 26 
Several of the Board members voiced concerns about the $1 eCheck and eSaving fees which 27 
must be paid to Payment Service Network by customers as they do not believe it’s fair to re-28 
quire those individuals to pay for a portion of the Village’s cost of doing business. The sugges-29 
tion was made that the previously mentioned fees be absorbed by the Utility and included in 30 
the rate structure.  31 
 32 
It was the consensus that this issue shall be referred back to the Utilities Committee for further 33 
review and consideration.  34 
 35 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to adopt Resolution 275, which extends the time for use of 36 
Water Utility impact fees which have been collected: 37 
Water tower impact fees were established on October 25, 2005 and they have been collected 38 
whenever necessary, but fire flow testing will not be required until after 2015. Wisconsin Act 39 
44 places time limitations on expenditure of impact fees unless a Resolution which identifies 40 
extenuating circumstances or a hardship is adopted. The Utilities Committee has recommended 41 
that Resolution No. 275, which does extend the time for using Water Utility impact fees be 42 
passed and adopted. 43 
 44 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the recom-45 
mendation of the Utilities Committee and passes and adopts Resolution No. 275, which extends 46 
the time for using Water Utility impact fees which have been collected, as presented. Motion 47 
carried – All ayes. 48 
 49 

3



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

 

-3- 

Item No. 5. Consider a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 220, which recreates §62.1 through 1 
§62.28 of the Utility Code: 2 
The Utilities Committee recently reviewed the Utility Code and determined that some revisions 3 
were warranted. Therefore, a draft copy of Ordinance No. 220, which recreates §62.1 through 4 
§62.28 of the Utility Code was included in the meeting packets. A number of the previously 5 
mentioned revisions were editorial in nature, but in particular §62.11(f)(2)(a)(2) has been modi-6 
fied to allow restaurant owners to stop cleaning grease interceptors when they are closed for 7 
more than one month. The time interval for bacteriological testing of private wells, which is de-8 
lineated in §62.6(3)(c), has also been reduced from two weeks to one week between samples. 9 
 10 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board accepts the recom-11 
mendation of the Utilities Committee and approves Ordinance No. 220, which recreates §62.1 12 
through §62.28 of the Utility Code, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 13 
 14 
At 6:50 P.M. a brief recess was taken. The Board reconvened at 6:52 P.M. 15 
 16 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to adopt Resolution No. 277, which authorizes the sale of “The 17 
Old School” property: 18 
Village officials have entered into an agreement to sell the three parcels which are commonly 19 
referred to as “The Old School Property” to Mitch Larson for $400,000, and a draft of Resolu-20 
tion No. 277, which authorizes the sale of two of the three parcels  was included in the meet-21 
ing packets. (Some issues have arisen with respect to the third parcel, but as soon as those is-22 
sues are resolved Jackson will see that the matter is referred back to the Board.) 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board approves Resolu-25 
tion No. 277, which authorizes the sale of “The Old School Property” -  Parcel Nos. 181-42-26 
30001 and 181-42-40001 to  Mitch Larson for $400,000. Motion carried – All ayes.    27 
 28 
Item No. 7. Consider new appointments to the Door County Tourism Zone Commission: 29 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Abshire that Zeke Jackson shall be appointed to 30 
replace Chad Kodanko as a representative for the Village of Sister Bay on the Door County 31 
Tourism Zone Commission. Motion carried – All ayes.  32 
 33 
Item No. 8.  Review of the monthly financial statements and consideration of a motion to ap-34 
prove the monthly bills: 35 
Payment approval reports for the period November 13, 2013 through December 10, 2013  36 
were included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed all of those 37 
documents.  38 
 39 
It was the consensus that the bill from JJR for 78% of the Beach Expansion Project redesign 40 
costs shall be held until Neuman has an opportunity to discuss the bill with Kufrin.   41 
 42 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Clove that the monthly bills totaling $1,058,576.09 43 
are all approved. Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Duffy that the charges delineated in the Speed 46 
Letter from Donohue & Associates which is dated December 4, 2013 and total $286,590.30 47 
shall be paid in full. Motion carried – All ayes.  48 
 49 

4



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

 

-4- 

Item No. 9. Consider a motion to adopt Resolution 278, which amends the 2013 budget: 1 
Budgeting is a crucial part of the fiscal planning process, and staff members do strive to adhere 2 
to adopted budgetary constraints. However, from time to time unforeseen events do unfold in 3 
such fashion as to necessitate an expenditure which is greater than what was originally con-4 
templated. When the 2013 budget was approved Village officials were not aware that the then 5 
Village Administrator, Bob Kufrin, would be retiring on June 30, 2013. The Village subsequent-6 
ly contracted with Kufrin to serve as Interim Administrator/Consultant. The 2013 budget also 7 
divided revenue from State Aid for Roads between the Parks and Streets Department and the 8 
Capital Improvements Fund, but street maintenance costs have been higher than usual. The Fi-9 
nance Director has reviewed financial reports for 2013 and is recommending that an Adminis-10 
trative Consulting Account with a balance of $30,122 be established. She is also recommend-11 
ing that $5,000 be reallocated from the Street Resurfacing Capital Improvements Account to the 12 
Street Maintenance line item in the budget. Because this is a budget amendment a motion must 13 
carry by a 2/3 majority. 14 
 15 
A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Clove that the Village Board accepts the recom-16 
mendation of the Village’s Finance Director and passes and adopts Resolution No. 278, which 17 
amends the 2013 budget for the Village of Sister Bay, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 18 
 19 
Item No. 10. Consider a motion to approve a contract amendment with Donohue & Associ-20 
ates for a lighting plan design in the amount of $7,000: 21 
A document entitled Amendment No. 1 to the Engineering Services Agreement for the Bay 22 
Shore Drive Utility and Roadway Improvements Project was included in the meeting packets, 23 
and the Board members jointly reviewed that document. Basically, if the amendment is ap-24 
proved the scope of services for the Bay Shore Drive Utility and Roadway Improvements Pro-25 
ject will be modified in such fashion that employees from Donohue & Associates will deter-26 
mine the lighting and pull box layout, size the wiring based on the preliminary spacing calcula-27 
tions approved by the D.O.T., complete the final design of the layout and provide construction 28 
details, develop street lighting quantities, provide the D.O.T. with lighting detail sheets, and 29 
prepare the final street lighting permit application and submit it to the D.O.T. for approval. The 30 
cost of the additional services will be $7,000.      31 
 32 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Abshire that the Village Board approves Amend-33 
ment No. 1 to the Engineering Services Agreement for the Bay Shore Drive Utility and Roadway 34 
Improvements Project, as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 35 
 36 
Item No. 11. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 37 
Lienau gave the following oral report: 38 

    All the County employees’ positions were recently re-evaluated, and pay grades and 39 
detailed job descriptions were created for those positions based upon a compensation 40 
study and plan which was completed by an outside firm. There were some employees 41 
who were being paid less than the minimum wage established for their positions, and 42 
therefore, their salaries will be increased. There were also some employees who were 43 
paid more than the maximum wage established for their positions, and therefore, some 44 
wage freezes will be initiated.  45 

 46 
Committee Reports: 47 
(1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 48 
The Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee has not met recently. 49 

5



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

 

-5- 

(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 1 
No action based upon the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Bay Shore 2 
Drive Reconstruction Oversight Committee will be meeting tomorrow at 2:00 P.M. 3 
 4 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee 5 
The Communication and Technology Committee will be meeting at the Administration Building 6 
at 2:30 P.M. on Thursday, December 12, 2013. 7 
 8 
(4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 9 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  10 
 11 
(5) DCEDC  12 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   13 
 14 
(6) Economic Development Committee 15 
The Economic Development Committee has not met recently.  16 
 17 
(7) Finance Committee 18 
The Finance Committee has not met recently.    19 
 20 
(8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 21 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 22 
 23 
The Fire District Exploratory Committee has not met recently. Chris Hecht, the Fire Chief, antic-24 
ipates that some major decisions should be made soon by the Exploratory Committee.     25 
 26 
(9) Historical Society 27 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. It is Scattergood’s 28 
understanding that the Historical Society has not made any formal decisions regarding acquisi-29 
tion of “The Old School” yet. 30 
   31 
(10) Library Commission 32 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Library 33 
Commission also met this afternoon but those minutes have not been completed yet.      34 
 35 
(11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 36 
The Marina Committee did not meet this month. Wendy Tatzel, the Marina Manager had her 37 
baby. 38 
 39 
(12) Parks 40 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Parks Com-41 
mittee met on December 4, 2013, but those minutes have not been completed yet. The ice rink 42 
should be opening soon.   43 
 44 
(13) Personnel Committee 45 
The Personnel Committee has not met recently.       46 
 47 
(14) Plan Commission 48 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Plan Com-49 

6



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

 

-6- 

mission met on December 3, 2013, but those minutes have not been completed yet.   1 
 2 
(15) SBAA 3 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The SBAA Board 4 
of Directors met on Thursday, December 5, 2013. Elections were held and Steve Gomoll will 5 
serve as the President of the SBAA, Jessica Grasse will serve as Vice-President, and Windy 6 
Bittorf will again serve as Treasurer.  7 
 8 
(16) Teen Center 9 
The Teen Center Board met on Wednesday, November 20, 2013, but those minutes have not 10 
been completed yet. Deb Anderson has promised to get them to Suppanz ASAP. It is Abshire’s 11 
understanding that the YMCA is not interested in providing supervisory services on a regular 12 
basis at the Teen Center. Other staffing alternatives are now being considered.   13 
 14 
(17) Tourism Zone Commission 15 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  16 
  17 
(18) Utilities 18 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Late this after-19 
noon Lienau received a letter from John Lowry, the Chair of the Town of Liberty Grove. In that 20 
letter Lowry states that Town officials would like to cancel the December 16, 2013 ownership 21 
meeting as they have been dealing with a number of other highly contested issues and haven’t 22 
had sufficient time to prepare for the meeting. Lienau will discuss this issue with Lowry and re-23 
port his findings at a future Board meeting.   24 
 25 
At 7:39 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 7:41 P.M.    26 
 27 
Item No. 12. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats.,  28 
§19.85(1)(c) to discuss employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation da-29 
ta of any public employee subject to the jurisdiction or authority of the governing body: 30 
At 7:42 PM a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board convene 31 
into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss employment, promotion, 32 
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee subject to the jurisdic-33 
tion or authority of the governing body. A roll call vote was taken on the motion, and the Board 34 
members voted in the following fashion: 35 
 36 
 Abshire  – Aye;   Baker  – Aye; Clove – Aye; 37 
 Duffy  – Aye.   Lienau  – Aye; Scattergood – Aye; 38 
      Solomon – Aye. 39 
Motion carried. 40 
 41 
Item No. 13. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 42 
At 9:01 PM a motion was made by Abshire seconded by Clove that the Board reconvene into 43 
Open Session. A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Board members again voted in 44 
the following fashion: 45 
 46 
 Abshire  – Aye;   Baker  – Aye; Clove – Aye; 47 
 Duffy  – Aye.   Lienau  – Aye; Scattergood – Aye; 48 
      Solomon – Aye 49 

7



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes – December 10, 2013 

I:\Agendas Complete\Board\2013\2013_12\121013 Village Board Minutes - Unapproved Version.doc 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 12/10/2013; Last Printed: 1/10/2014 10:16 AM 
 

-7- 

Motion carried. 1 
 2 
Item No. 14. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 3 
A motion was made by Abshire, seconded by Duffy that the Village shall pay $120,000 for 4 
health insurance premiums for employees, and those funds shall be allocated as proposed. Mo-5 
tion carried – All ayes. 6 
 7 
Item No. 15. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 8 
Committee, official or employee: 9 
It was the consensus that the following items shall be added to the Agenda for the next Village 10 
Board Meeting: 11 

   Consider a motion to create the new Ad Hoc/Standing Committees which were dis-12 
cussed during the closed session; and, 13 

   Consider a motion to approve a Resolution opposing Senate Bill 349 related to non-14 
metallic mining. 15 

 16 
Jackson suggested that the Board members think about goal setting for 2014 and 2015. It was 17 
the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at a future Board meeting. 18 

   19 
Adjournment: 20 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Clove to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 21 
Trustees at 9:08 PM. Motion carried – All ayes, 22 
 23 
Respectfully submitted,  24 

 25 
Janal Suppanz,  26 
Administrative Assistant27 

8



9



10



11



12



13



     
 DCCP Vision:   
 

 An engaged community that 
 values the opinions and ideas  
 of others and is committed to  
 civil behavior and discourse. 

 
 DCCP Mission:   
 

 To foster and incorporate the 
 principles of civility into the fabric  
 of everyday life in Door County. 
 

 Door County Civility Project History: 
 

 The Civility Project is based on the work of  
 Dr.  P.M, Forni of Johns Hopkins University  
 who authored Choosing Civility and  
 The Civility Solution . 
 

 2003 Duluth-Superior Area Community   
 Foundation’s Civility Project: “Speak Your 
 Peace” was initiated. 
 

 2010 Oshkosh Civility Project was formed. 
 

 2013 Door County Civility Project was  
 formed as a  fund of the Door County 
 Community Foundation. 
 

 2013 Door County Civility Project became 
 an affiliate of the Wisconsin Civility Project. 

 

 
 

We thank the following sponsors and 
donors who helped the DCCP get started: 

 
*Ministry Door County Medical Center 

*Boettcher Communications 
*Peninsula Pulse 

*League of Women Voters Door County 
 *Door County Community Foundation 

*University of Wisconsin Oshkosh 

 
DCCP gratefully accepts donations  

through the  
Door County Community Foundation. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
DOOR COUNTY 

CIVILITY PLEDGE 
 

    Today and Every Day I Aspire to Practice the    
    Following Skills: 
   * Pay Attention - Be Aware of Others & Sensitive to   
     the Immediate Context of Actions 
   * Listen Closely - Understand Other Points of View 
   * Be Inclusive - Welcome All; Don't Exclude Anyone 
   * Don't Gossip - Remind Others of the Importance  
      of this Practice 
  * Show Respect - Honor Others (Especially in  
     Disagreement) 
   * Be Agreeable - Find Opportunities to Agree 
   * Apologize Sincerely - Repair Damaged  
     Relationships 
   * Give Constructive Comments, Suggestions &  
     Feedback - No Personal  Attacks (Focus on Issues) 
   * Accept Responsibility - Don't Shift Blame; Share  
     Disagreements Publicly 

 
   Commit to the Civility Pledge online at   
   doorcountycivilityproject.org or mail the    
   form below to PO Box 675 Sturgeon Bay WI    
   54235- 0675 
 
   Name:  _______________________________ 
 
 
   Comments:____________________________ 
 
   _____________________________________ 
 
   _____________________________________ 
 
   _____________________________________ 
 
   Email: ________________________________ 
   Email addresses will NOT be published on the   
   website: 

14



 
 

  
  It is easy, yes… so easy, to be civil  
  with people who agree with you 
  and those who think like you do!   
  The challenge is to be civil with those  
  who strongly disagree with you and  
  do not share your opinions! 
 
 

  
  Civility means weaving together  
  restraint, respect and responsibility  
  as we interact with others. 
 
 

  
  It is quite possible to be true to  
  one’s beliefs and be civil at the  
  same time. 
 
 

  
  The DCCP is NOT a campaign to end  
  all disagreements … but a campaign  
  to make it safe to disagree. 

       

 
 
What are people saying about the 
Door County Civility Project? 

 
 

"We live in an extraordinary community – 
a community that people are impassioned 
about - and when we couple that passion 
with a culture of respect and 
understanding, there isn't a challenge  
we can't overcome - together!" 
 
 
"This begins a new era here in Door County 
– One of engaging our community to be 
the best it can be through the collective 
wisdom of its people!" 
 
 
"This means that we can engage in open 
honest discussions and at the end of the 
day, it's ok to agree to disagree as long as 
our discussions are respectful and  
inclusive of all viewpoints.” 
 
 
  "A great initiative from Door County,   
  especially in these changing times, to  
  recognize that some things are constant  
  and the community is a foundation to  
  care for us all." 
 
 
 
 
 

 

      
 
 

   The Door County Civility Project     
   (DCCP) is a community-based 
    initiative that advances the  
    cause  of civility in everyday  

    life to strengthen our 
    shared community. 

 
   Door County Civility Project 

   Doorcountycivilityproject.org 
   dccivilityproject@gmail.com 

 
 
 

     

15

mailto:dccivilityproject@gmail.com


RESOLUTION № 280 – 011413 
A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE NINE TOOLS OF CIVILITY 

 

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE VILLAGE BOARD OF SISTER BAY, IN 

DOOR COUNTY,  WISCONSIN,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 14th day 
of January, 2014. 
 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
          _____________________________________ 
          David W. Lienau, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk 
 

16



17



18



19



20



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 1/14/2014 

Item No. 4 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve Resolution 279-011414, Opposing SB 349 Related to Non-
Metallic Mining. 
   
 
Background:  
SB 349 limits the authority of political subdivisions of the State of Wisconsin to regulate nonmetallic 
mining.  SB 349 removes a local government’s authority to regulate nonmetallic mining activities ex-
cept for zoning designations.  This will significantly limit localities ability to protect the health, safety 
and welfare of their citizens by removing regulatory authority over such items as water quality protec-
tion, natural buffer maintenance, and/or noise limitations.  
 
The full text of the legislation and analysis is included in your packets for review.   
 
Fiscal Impact: No direct initial impact.   May in time cause substantial negative impacts to property 
values in proximity to nonmetallic mining operations.   
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

21



RESOLUTION № 279 – 011413 
Resolution in Opposition to SB 349 

Relating to Regulation of Nonmetallic Mining 

 

 

 

INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 14th day 
of January, 2014. 
 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
          _____________________________________ 
          David W. Lienau, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk 
 

22



LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

2013 − 2014  LEGISLATURE

2013 SENATE BILL 349

October 22, 2013 − Introduced by Senators TIFFANY, DARLING, FARROW, GUDEX, LASEE

and LAZICH, cosponsored by Representatives BALLWEG, BIES, KUGLITSCH,
MURPHY, NYGREN, SANFELIPPO and TITTL. Referred to Committee on Workforce
Development, Forestry, Mining, and Revenue.

AN ACT to repeal 285.11 (3), 285.73 and 285.75; to renumber 295.14 (1); to

renumber and amend 59.69 (10) (ab), 60.61 (5) (ab) and 62.23 (7) (ab); to

amend 84.06 (12) (b) (intro.), 85.193 (2) (intro.), 86.02 and 349.16 (1) (c); and

to create 59.69 (10) (ab) 1., 59.69 (10) (as), 60.61 (5) (ab) 1., 60.61 (5) (as), 62.23

(7) (ab) 1., 62.23 (7) (hs), 66.0416, 101.15 (2) (g), 281.125, 285.74, 295.12 (2) (e),

295.13 (1) (b), 295.14 (1) (b) and 349.03 (2r) of the statutes; relating to: local

regulation of nonmetallic mining; local regulation of air quality; local

regulation of water quality; local regulation of the use of explosives in mining,

quarrying, and related activities; highway use contracts by local governments;

and local regulation of borrow sites and material disposal sites for

transportation projects of the Department of Transportation.

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Bureau

This bill concerns local governmental authority to regulate air quality, water
quality and quantity, and the use of explosives; local government highway use
contracts and local regulation of material disposal sites related to transportation
projects of the Department of Transportation (DOT); and local governmental

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

23



− 2 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

 SENATE BILL 349

authority to regulate nonmetallic mining.  Nonmetallic mining is extracting
nonmetallic materials, such as stone, gravel, clay, and sand.

Local regulation of nonmetallic mining

Under current law, a political subdivision (a city, village, town that is
authorized to exercise village powers, or county) is authorized to enact zoning
ordinances that regulate and restrict the height, number of stories, and size of
buildings and other structures, the percentage of lot that may be occupied, the size
of yards and other open spaces, the density of population, the location and use of
buildings, structures, and land for various purposes, and the areas in which
agriculture, industry, mining, and other activities may be conducted.  If a county has
a county zoning ordinance, current law requires that before a town that is authorized
to exercise village powers may enact or amend a zoning ordinance, the town must
obtain county board approval.  Similar authority to zone may be exercised by towns
that are not authorized to exercise village powers (limited towns) if certain
conditions are met, including a situation under which the town is located in a county
that does not have a county zoning ordinance and the county fails to enact such an
ordinance after the town petitions the county to do so.

Also under current law, a zoning ordinance enacted by a political subdivision
or limited town may not prohibit the continued lawful use of any building, premises,
structure, or fixture for any trade or industry for which the building, premises,
structure, or fixture is used when the ordinance takes effect, although in limited
towns such an ordinance may prohibit the alteration of, or addition to, any existing
building, premises, structure, or fixture that is used to carry on an otherwise
prohibited trade or industry within the area that is subject to the ordinance (district).

In political subdivisions, the alteration of, addition to, or repair in excess of 50
percent of the assessed value of any existing building, premises, structure, or fixture
to carry on any prohibited trade or industry within the district may be prohibited.
Generally, if such a nonconforming use of a building, premises, structure, or fixture
is discontinued for 12 months, any future use of the building, premises, structure,
or fixture must conform to the political subdivision’s zoning ordinance.  Under county
law, the continued use of a nonconforming temporary structure may be prohibited.

Under a current decision of the Wisconsin Supreme Court, Zwiefelhofer v. Town
of Cooks Valley, 338 Wis. 2d 488 (2012), the court held that a town ordinance enacted
under its police power, which regulated nonmetallic mining in the town, did not
require county board approval because the ordinance enacted by the town was not
a zoning ordinance.  Because the town of Cooks Valley was authorized to exercise
village powers, its zoning ordinances must be approved by the county board.  The
court stated that although the exercise of zoning authority is carried out under the
town’s police power, not all ordinances enacted under the police power are zoning
ordinances.  The court further held that although the town’s nonmetallic mining
ordinance had some similarities to a zoning ordinance, many traditional
characteristics of a zoning ordinance were not present.  Therefore, according to the
court, the town of Cooks Valley’s ordinance was a valid exercise of its police power,
was not a zoning ordinance, and did not require county board approval.

24



− 3 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

 SENATE BILL 349

This bill limits the authority of a political subdivision or limited town to
regulate nonmetallic mining.  Under the bill, a political subdivision or limited town
may not, other than through a zoning ordinance or a nonmetallic mining reclamation
ordinance, enact or enforce an ordinance that applies to nonmetallic mining,
including a licensing ordinance, that regulates how a use of land takes place or
affects the use of land.

Also under the bill, a zoning ordinance enacted by a political subdivision or
limited town may not prohibit the continued extraction of a nonmetallic mineral from
a nonconforming nonmetallic mining location, which is defined as land on which
nonmetallic mining was occurring when nonmetallic mining became a
nonconforming use, including land that is contiguous to such land if the contiguous
land is under the common ownership or control of the person who owns or controls
the land on which the mining was occurring.  This provision codifies the diminishing
asset rule, which has been adopted in a number of decisions of the Wisconsin Court
of Appeals, including the case of Schroeder v. Dane County Board of Adjustment, 228
Wis. 2d 324 (Ct. Apps. 1999).

Nonmetallic mining reclamation

Current law requires the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) to
promulgate rules containing uniform statewide standards for the reclamation of
nonmetallic mining sites.  Reclamation consists of rehabilitating a nonmetallic
mining site to achieve a land use specified in a reclamation plan, including removal
or reuse of refuse; removal, storage, and replacement of topsoil; reestablishment of
vegetation; control of surface water and groundwater; and prevention of
environmental pollution.  The standards impose requirements that apply during
nonmetallic mining as well as after the mining ends.

This bill prohibits DNR from establishing nonmetallic mining reclamation
standards relating to water quality or quantity or air quality that are more
restrictive than this state’s laws that relate specifically to water quality and quantity
and air quality.

Current law requires a county to administer a nonmetallic mining reclamation
program by enacting an ordinance that complies with the DNR standards and that
includes a requirement to obtain a nonmetallic mining permit, requirements for fees,
requirements for reclamation plans, and requirements for proof of financial
responsibility for reclaiming nonmetallic mining sites.  Current law authorizes a city,
village, or town to administer a nonmetallic mining reclamation program by
enacting such an ordinance.

This bill prohibits a county, city, village, or town from enacting or enforcing a
nonmetallic mining reclamation ordinance that requires an operator to obtain a
permit other than a reclamation permit; includes a standard of air quality or water
quality; requires monitoring water quality or quantity or air quality; or is more
restrictive than DNR’s nonmetallic mining reclamation standards or this state’s
laws that relate specifically to water quality and quantity and air quality.

Local regulation of water quality and quantity and air quality

This bill generally prohibits a county, city, village, town, county utility district,
town sanitary district, public inland lake protection and rehabilitation district, or

25



− 4 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

 SENATE BILL 349

metropolitan sewage district (local governmental unit) from establishing or
enforcing a standard of water quality; issuing permits related to water quality or
quantity; imposing restrictions related to water quality or quantity; or requiring
monitoring of water quality or quantity.  The bill authorizes a local governmental
unit to take actions related to water quality or quantity that are specifically required
or authorized by this state’s statutes.

Current law authorizes a county to administer an air pollution control program
with requirements that are consistent with or stricter than those in state laws
related to air quality if DNR approves the program.  This bill eliminates that
authority.

This bill generally prohibits a local governmental unit from establishing or
enforcing a standard of air quality; issuing permits related to air quality; imposing
restrictions related to air quality; or requiring monitoring of air quality.  The bill
authorizes a local governmental unit to regulate open burning and to take other
actions related to air quality that are specifically required or authorized by this
state’s statutes.

Local regulation of the use of explosives

Current law requires the Department of Safety and Professional Services
(DSPS) to promulgate rules to ensure the safety of mines, explosives, quarries, and
related activities.  The rules must provide uniform limits on the results of blasting,
to reasonably ensure that blasting does not cause injury, damage, or unreasonable
annoyance to any person or property outside a controlled blasting site.

This bill prohibits a city, village, town, or county from regulating the use of
explosives in connection with mining, quarrying, and related activities regulated by
DSPS, except that the bill authorizes these local governments to regulate blasting
schedules by the issuance of a conditional use permit.

Damage to highways and highway use contracts

Under current law, any person who injures a highway is liable in treble
damages to the political division with maintenance jurisdiction over the highway.

This bill limits this liability to damage that is caused willfully or that results
from an unlawful act.

Current law generally prohibits a local authority from enacting or enforcing
any traffic regulation excluding or prohibiting any motor vehicle from the free use
of all highways.  Current law also allows a city, village, or town (municipality) or
county, with respect to highways maintained by the municipality or county, to post
special weight limits on highways that are weakened due to deterioration, climatic
conditions, or other special or temporary conditions and that would likely be
seriously damaged or destroyed in the absence of these special weight limits.  A
municipality, county, or traffic officer may also order the owner or operator of a
vehicle to suspend operation on a highway if the vehicle is causing or likely to cause
injury to the highway, unless the highway is being used as a detour by DOT or the
vehicle is being operated under a contract that provides that the municipality or
county will be reimbursed for any damage done to the highway.

This bill prohibits, with limited exceptions, a municipality or county from
imposing any fee or other charge on a highway user under the jurisdiction of the

26



− 5 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

 SENATE BILL 349

municipality or county.  Under one exception, a municipality or county may enter into
a contract with a highway user that requires the highway user to reimburse the
municipality or county for the cost of repairs to a highway necessitated by actual
damage to the highway caused by the highway user if the contract includes all of the
following requirements:  1) the repairs to the highway are completed before
reimbursement is required by the highway user; 2) the proportion of damages to the
highway caused specifically by the highway user and the cost of repairs attributable
to that share of damages is determined by an engineer chosen by agreement of the
highway user and the municipality or county; and 3) the costs of the engineer’s
services are paid in equal shares by the highway user and the municipality or county.
The contract may require that the highway user show proof of financial security
sufficient to pay for the cost of highway repairs if the proof of financial security meets
certain requirements.  If a highway use contract is entered into, the provision of
current law providing treble damages against a person who injures a highway does
not apply to damage caused by a vehicle operated under the contract.  The bill also
specifies a procedure for a highway user that is a party to a highway use contract that
pre−dates the bill’s effective date to seek modification of the existing highway use
contract or replacement of this contract with a new contract.

Borrow sites and material disposal sites for DOT projects

Under current law, a �borrow site" is a site off of project property from which
borrow is excavated for use in a DOT transportation project.  �Borrow" is soil or a
mixture of soil, stone, gravel, or similar material for use as part of a DOT
transportation project.  A �material disposal site" is a site off of project property used
for the lawful disposal of surplus materials from a DOT transportation project and
that is controlled by the project contractor or subcontractor.  If specified
requirements are met, a local zoning ordinance may not apply to a borrow site or a
material disposal site.

Under this bill, a political subdivision may not enact or enforce any ordinance,
resolution, or other requirement, including a zoning ordinance, that applies to a
borrow site or a material disposal site.

For further information see the state and local fiscal estimate, which will be
printed as an appendix to this bill.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do
enact as follows:

SECTION 1.  59.69 (10) (ab) of the statutes is renumbered 59.69 (10) (ab) (intro.)

and amended to read:

59.69 (10) (ab) (intro.)  In this subsection �nonconforming:

1

2

3

27



− 6 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 1 SENATE BILL 349

2.  �Nonconforming use" means a use of land, a dwelling, or a building that

existed lawfully before the current zoning ordinance was enacted or amended, but

that does not conform with the use restrictions in the current ordinance.

SECTION 2.  59.69 (10) (ab) 1. of the statutes is created to read:

59.69 (10) (ab) 1.  �Nonconforming nonmetallic mining location" means land on

which nonmetallic mining was occurring when nonmetallic mining became a

nonconforming use, including land that is contiguous to such land if the contiguous

land is under the common ownership or control of the person who owns or controls

the land on which the mining was occurring, and includes leasehold interests,

without regard to whether private roads or waterways run through the land.

SECTION 3.  59.69 (10) (as) of the statutes is created to read:

59.69 (10) (as)  An ordinance enacted under this section may not prohibit the

continued extraction of a nonmetallic mineral from a nonconforming nonmetallic

mining location.  Such continued extraction from such a location shall be considered

an existing use, may not be considered an expansion of a nonconforming use, and

may not be prohibited in areas of the nonconforming nonmetallic mining location

that have not previously been under actual excavation.

SECTION 4.  60.61 (5) (ab) of the statutes is renumbered 60.61 (5) (ab) (intro.)

and amended to read:

60.61 (5) (ab) (intro.)  In this subsection �nonconforming:

2.  �Nonconforming use" means a use of land, a dwelling, or a building that

existed lawfully before the current zoning ordinance was enacted or amended, but

that does not conform with the use restrictions in the current ordinance.

SECTION 5.  60.61 (5) (ab) 1. of the statutes is created to read:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

28



− 7 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 5 SENATE BILL 349

60.61 (5) (ab) 1.  �Nonconforming nonmetallic mining location" means land on

which nonmetallic mining was occurring when nonmetallic mining became a

nonconforming use, including land that is contiguous to such land if the contiguous

land is under the common ownership or control of the person who owns or controls

the land on which the mining was occurring, and includes leasehold interests,

without regard to whether private roads or waterways run through the land.

SECTION 6.  60.61 (5) (as) of the statutes is created to read:

60.61 (5) (as)  An ordinance enacted under this section may not prohibit the

continued extraction of a nonmetallic mineral from a nonconforming nonmetallic

mining location.  Such continued extraction from such a location shall be considered

an existing use, may not be considered an expansion of a nonconforming use, and

may not be prohibited in areas of the nonconforming nonmetallic mining location

that have not previously been under actual excavation.

SECTION 7.  62.23 (7) (ab) of the statutes is renumbered 62.23 (7) (ab) (intro.)

and amended to read:

62.23 (7) (ab)  Definition Definitions.  (intro.)  In this subsection

�nonconforming:

2.  �Nonconforming use" means a use of land, a dwelling, or a building that

existed lawfully before the current zoning ordinance was enacted or amended, but

that does not conform with the use restrictions in the current ordinance.

SECTION 8.  62.23 (7) (ab) 1. of the statutes is created to read:

62.23 (7) (ab) 1.  �Nonconforming nonmetallic mining location" means land on

which nonmetallic mining was occurring when nonmetallic mining became a

nonconforming use, including land that is contiguous to such land if the contiguous

land is under the common ownership or control of the person who owns or controls

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

29



− 8 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 8 SENATE BILL 349

the land on which the mining was occurring, and includes leasehold interests,

without regard to whether private roads or waterways run through the land.

SECTION 9.  62.23 (7) (hs) of the statutes is created to read:

62.23 (7) (hs)  Nonmetallic mining.  An ordinance enacted under this subsection

may not prohibit the continued extraction of a nonmetallic mineral from a

nonconforming nonmetallic mining location.  Such continued extraction from such

a location shall be considered an existing use, may not be considered an expansion

of a nonconforming use, and may not be prohibited in areas of the nonconforming

nonmetallic mining locations that have not previously been under actual excavation.

SECTION 10.  66.0416 of the statutes is created to read:

66.0416  Local regulation of nonmetallic mining.  (1)  DEFINITIONS.  In this

section:

(a)  �Nonmetallic mining" has the meaning given in s. 295.11 (3).

(b)  �Political subdivision" means a city, village, town, or county.

(c)  �Zoning ordinance" means an ordinance enacted or amended by a political

subdivision under s. 59.69 (4), 60.61 (2), 60.62 (1), 61.35, or 62.23 (7) (am).

(2)  LIMITATIONS ON REGULATION.  Except for a nonmetallic mining reclamation

ordinance as described in ss. 295.13 and 295.14 or a zoning ordinance, a political

subdivision may not enact or enforce an ordinance applicable to nonmetallic mining,

including a licensing ordinance, that regulates how a use of land takes place or

affects the use of land.

SECTION 11.  84.06 (12) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.06 (12) (b) (intro.)  No political subdivision may enact or enforce any

ordinance, resolution, or other requirement, including a zoning ordinance enacted

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

30



− 9 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 11 SENATE BILL 349

under s. 59.69, 60.61, 60.62, 61.35, or 62.23 may apply, that applies to a borrow site

if all of the following apply:

SECTION 12.  85.193 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

85.193 (2)  EXEMPTION FROM LOCAL ZONING REQUIREMENTS.  (intro.)  No political

subdivision may enact or enforce any ordinance, resolution, or other requirement,

including a zoning ordinance enacted under s. 59.69, 60.61, 60.62, 61.35, or 62.23

may apply, that applies to a borrow site or material disposal site if all of the following

apply:

SECTION 13.  86.02 of the statutes is amended to read:

86.02  Injury to highway.  Any person who shall injure any highway by

obstructing or diverting any creek or watercourse or sluiceway, or by dragging logs

or timber thereon, or by any other act, shall be liable in treble damages, to be

recovered by the political division chargeable with the maintenance of highway

injured, and the amount recovered shall be credited to the highway maintenance

fund.  This section does not apply to damage caused by a vehicle when the vehicle is

being operated under a contract described in s. 349.03 (2r) (c).  This section applies

only to damage that is caused willfully or that results from an unlawful act.

SECTION 14.  101.15 (2) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

101.15 (2) (g) 1.  Except as provided in subd. 2., no city, village, town, or county

may enact or enforce an ordinance or other regulation governing the use of explosives

in connection with an activity regulated by the department under this section.

2.  A city, village, town, or county may regulate blasting schedules by the

issuance of a conditional use permit.

SECTION 15.  281.125 of the statutes is created to read:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

31



− 10 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 15 SENATE BILL 349

281.125  Limitation on local authority.  (1)  Except as provided in sub. (2),

a municipality may not do any of the following:

(a)  Establish or enforce a standard of water quality.

(b)  Issue permits, including permits for discharges to the waters of the state,

or any other form of approval related to water quality or quantity.

(c)  Impose any restriction related to water quality or quantity.

(d)  Impose any requirement related to monitoring water quality or quantity.

(2) (a)  A municipality may take actions related to water quality or quantity that

are specifically required or authorized by another statute.

(b)  A municipality may not use s. 59.03 (2) (a), 59.54 (6), 60.10 (2) (c), 61.34, or

62.11 (5) as the basis for taking an action under par. (a).

SECTION 16.  285.11 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 17.  285.73 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 18.  285.74 of the statutes is created to read:

285.74  Limitation on local authority.  (1)  Except as provided in sub. (2) (a),

a municipality may not do any of the following:

(a)  Establish or enforce an ambient air quality standard, standard of

performance for new stationary sources, or other emission limitation related to air

quality.

(b)  Issue permits or any other form of approval related to air quality.

(c)  Impose any restriction related to air quality.

(d)  Impose any requirement related to monitoring air quality.

(2) (a)  A municipality may do any of the following:

1.  Take actions related to air quality that are specifically required or authorized

by another statute.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

32



− 11 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 18 SENATE BILL 349

2.  Regulate open burning.

(b)  A municipality may not use s. 59.03 (2) (a), 59.54 (6), 60.10 (2) (c), 61.34, or

62.11 (5) as the basis for taking an action under par. (a) 1.

SECTION 19.  285.75 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 20.  295.12 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

295.12 (2) (e)  The department may not establish nonmetallic mining

reclamation standards under sub. (1) (a) relating to water quality or quantity or air

quality that are more restrictive than chs. 160, 280, 281, 283, or 285 or rules

promulgated under those chapters.

SECTION 21.  295.13 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

295.13 (1) (b)  Restrictions on ordinances.  A county may not enact or enforce

provisions in an ordinance under par. (a) that do any of the following:

1.  Specify a standard of water quality or air quality.

2.  Require an operator to obtain a permit or other form of approval in addition

to a nonmetallic mining reclamation permit.

3.  Impose any requirement related to monitoring water quality or quantity or

air quality.

4.  With respect to water quality or quantity or air quality, are more restrictive

than the standards under s. 295.12 (1) (a).

5.  With respect to water quality or quantity or air quality, are more restrictive

than chs. 160, 280, 281, 283, or 285 and rules promulgated under those chapters.

SECTION 22.  295.14 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 295.14 (1) (a).

SECTION 23.  295.14 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

295.14 (1) (b)  A city, village, or town may not enact or enforce provisions in an

ordinance under par. (a) that do any of the following:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

33



− 12 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 23 SENATE BILL 349

1.  Specify a standard of water quality or air quality.

2.  Require an operator to obtain a permit or other form of approval in addition

to a nonmetallic mining reclamation permit.

3.  Impose any requirement related to monitoring water quality or quantity or

air quality.

4.  With respect to water quality or quantity or air quality, are more restrictive

than the standards under s. 295.12 (1) (a).

5.  With respect to water quality or quantity or air quality, are more restrictive

than chs. 160, 280, 281, 283, or 285 and rules promulgated under those chapters.

SECTION 24.  349.03 (2r) of the statutes is created to read:

349.03 (2r) (a)  In this subsection, �governmental unit" means a county, city,

village, or town.

(b)  Except as provided in pars. (c) to (e), a governmental unit may not impose

any fee or other charge on a highway user under the jurisdiction of the governmental

unit.

(c)  A governmental unit may enter into a contract with a highway user that

requires the highway user to reimburse the governmental unit for the cost of repairs

to a highway necessitated by actual damage to the highway caused by the highway

user if the contract includes all of the following requirements:

1.  The repairs to the highway are completed before reimbursement is required

by the highway user.

2.  The proportion of damages to the highway caused specifically by the

highway user and the cost of repairs attributable to that share of damages is

determined by an engineer chosen by agreement of the governmental unit and the

highway user.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

34



− 13 −2013 − 2014  Legislature
LRB−3146/1

RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 24 SENATE BILL 349

3.  The costs of the engineer’s services under subd. 2. are paid in equal shares

by the highway user and the governmental unit.

(d) 1.  Subject to subd. 2., a contract under par. (c) may require that a highway

user show proof of financial security sufficient to pay for the cost of repairs to a

highway necessitated by actual damage to the highway specifically caused by the

highway user.

2.  The proof of financial security under subd. 1. is subject to all of the following

requirements:

a.  The proof of financial security may not be required to be in an amount

greater than the reasonable expected payments for damages expected to be caused

during the 3 years following the date the amount of the financial security is

determined.

b.  The amount of financial security necessary to meet the requirement under

subd. 2. a. shall be determined by an engineer chosen by agreement of the

governmental unit and the highway user.

c.  The costs of the engineer’s services under subd. 2. b. are paid in equal shares

by the highway user and the governmental unit.

d.  The amount of financial security may not be required to be recalculated more

often than once per year, unless the highway user proposes changes to the highway

user’s proposed highway use that was not anticipated in the last calculation of

financial security.

3.  Proof of financial security under this paragraph may be provided in any form

allowed under s. 295.12 (3) (g) or rules promulgated under that provision.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

35



− 14 −2013 − 2014  Legislature LRB−3146/1
RCT/MES/ARG:wlj:jm

SECTION 24 SENATE BILL 349

(e)  This subsection does not prohibit a governmental unit from imposing a fee

in connection with the issuance of a permit authorized under ch. 348 or from

imposing a fee for parking on any portion of a highway reserved for parking.

(f)  A highway user that is a party to a highway use contract with a

governmental unit that was executed before, and in effect on, the effective date of this

paragraph .... [LRB inserts date], and that is inconsistent with the requirements of

this subsection, may petition the governmental unit to modify the existing highway

use contract, or replace it with a new contract, at any point during the remaining

term of the existing contract.  Upon receiving this petition, the governmental unit

shall participate in good faith in modifying the existing contract or negotiating a new

replacement contract.  Upon execution of a modification of the existing contract, any

inconsistent obligations of the governmental unit and the highway user under the

existing contract terminate.  Upon execution of a new replacement contract, the

obligations of the governmental unit and the highway user under the existing

contract terminate.

SECTION 25.  349.16 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

349.16 (1) (c)  Order the owner or operator of any vehicle being operated on a

highway to suspend operation if in its judgment such vehicle is causing or likely to

cause injury to such highway or is visibly injuring the permanence thereof or the

public investment therein, except when s. 84.20 is applicable or when the vehicle is

being operated pursuant to a contract which provides that the governmental unit

will be reimbursed for any damage done to the highway described in s. 349.03 (2r)

(c).  Traffic officers also may order suspension of operation under the circumstances

and subject to the limitations stated in this paragraph.

(END)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

36



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 1/14/2014 

Item No. 5 
 
Recommendation: That the Board conditionally approve a contract with Zeise construction of Green 
Bay for the construction of a Performance Pavilion, and authorize the Village president to execute said 
contract and award letter.   
 
The Board is being requested to amend the 2014 budget and reallocate $50,000 in CIP funds to this 
project as follows. 
 
$20,000-Skate Park Slab 
$17,000-CIP Interest Income 
$9,987- Various Parks Projects 
$3,013- Trees 
 
The Board is further requested to authorize the administrator to seek a private donation for the balance 
of the project cost.   
   
 
Background:  
The Parks Committee has recommended for approval final plans for the Pavilion project and accompa-
nying options to the Board, for a total cost not to exceed $450,000.  The committee considered elimi-
nation of Natural Stone on the interior of the Stage, as well as leaving the “I” beams exposed as cost 
saving measures.  Inclusion of these items would create a more substantial project  of up to $490,000, 
and donations could be sought to fulfill these portions of the project.  Dimension IV is working to ob-
tain pricing on these options, which will be considered by the Administrator and Village President be-
fore final awarding of the contract. 
 
Fiscal Impact: $50,000 reallocation of CIP funds.   
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

37



G-213562 - SISTER BAY PERFORMANCE PAVILION PRICING
January 8, 2014 - Committee Recommendation

Project "scope" (Cumulative from Base) ZEISE PRICE POINT Notes:

BASE BID: $412,469
adjustment for Electrical Allowance): -$             (Bid is within Electrical Allowance)
(Adjustment on wind screen doors) (1,340)$         (Provides 2 "flush" doors at each side)
(Adjustment for most basic Burnished Block) (500)$            (Pricing Level "A")

0 Base Bid (including Sales Tax Savings and adjustments) (6,116)$         Tax savings reduces cost by +/-$6,116

 Adjusted
"Base Bid" 

$404,513

2 Include Theatrical Lighting and Sound System
40,000$        

4 No Plates on Beams (Either Side)
(11,800)$       Zeise

7 Change Manufactured Stone to Natural Stone ("Outside")
6,800$          (Alternate #2)

12 Use colored concrete for terrace and sidewalk concrete
1,800$          (Alternate #5)

13 Average or Premium Burnished block color

(Add $1,500 in average; $3,000 in premium) 3,000$          Color Level "C"
Color Level "B" adds $1,500;  Color 
Level "C" adds $3,000

$444,313

POSSIBLE DEDUCTIONS: (55,487)$  

2 No Sidewalk
(3,600)$         (Alternate 8)

3 Delete wind screen "doors"
Remainder of Allowance in Bid   ($8,000-$1,340) (6,660)$         no doors.

4 No Plates on Beams (Either Side) RECOMMENDED BY PARKS
(11,800)$       Zeise

5 No Stone (manufacturered or natural) - all CMU
(26,015)$       Zeise

6 Delete terrace concrete from "around" Pavilion
(7,412)$         Zeise

POSSIBLE ADDITIONS: 59,306$    

7 Change Manufactured Stone to Natural Stone ("Outside") RECOMMENDED BY PARKS
6,800$          (Alternate #2)

8 Use Natural Stone in lieu of Burnished Block ("Inside")
`` 9,400$          (Alternates #10 + #9)

9 Add Plates to remaining "open" side of beams
16,500$        (Alternate #11)

10a Relocate Seawall "Electrical" (Alternate #7)
4,156$          NEI

10b Add 60 A outlet at Yard Box (65' in front of stage)
2,800$          NEI

11a Complete original electrical-ADD: LED fixtures
3,000$          Elan

11b Complete original electrical-ADD: timer
600$             NEI

12 Use colored concrete for "flat" concrete RECOMMENDED BY PARKS
1,800$          (Alternate #5)

13 Average or Premium Burnished block color RECOMMENDED BY PARKS

(Add $1,500 in average; $3,000 in premium) 2,250$          (AVERAGE)
Color Level "B" adds $1,500;  Color 
Level "C" adds $3,000

14 Enhanced theatrical lighting and sound
(Added lights and "ground" sound/speakers) 12,000$        

Simple time clock with "dusk" on and 
"timed" off

Fewer (only 10 vs 24) but more 
expensive fixture for work lights

Allows +/- $26,000 for light (19K) and 
sound (7K) equipment.  Labor/ 
installation is $14,000.

THE "PROJECT":

 

38



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.info 

 
Meeting Date: 1/14/2014 

Item No. 6,7,&8 
 
Recommendation: That the Board consider additional revisions to the Board of Trustee Bylaws and the 
Rules of Order and Organization for all Standing and Special Committees/Commissions which have 
been recommended by President Lienau.  This will create two additional Ad Hoc Committees:  
 
-Waterfront Oversight Committee 
-Employee Benefits Oversight Committee 
 
Sample membership for these Committees has been included in the revisions for consideration.  The 
Board may consider opening these Committees to members of the general public.  
 
That the Board consider adjusting the meeting frequency of other Committees in order to reduce costs 
and to keep Committees energized with fresh action items. 
   
 
Background:  
Waterfront Oversight Committee: 
The Waterfront Master Plan presented the philosophy that the face of our community are our wate r-
front parks.  With the Beach and Pavilion project moving forward, it is anticipated that our parks and 
marina will see additional visitor load.  This load will exceed the amenities that are presently avail a-
ble.  Also, as Gateway Park is remodeled, we will need to plan for the relocation of our visitor’s center.  
An Ad Hoc Committee that represents Finance, Parks and Marina Committees that can serve to plan 
and direct the various projects in our parks and marina in an integrated, holistic fashion will facilit ate 
cohesive community investment. 
 
Employee Benefits Oversight Committee: 
As significant portions of our workforce prepare for retirement, the Village should actively consider 
how it should move forward with employee compensation and benefits.  Challenges of recruitment and 
retention must be met with an appropriate wage and benefits structure which will allow us to attract 
the quality of candidates that will maintain and grow our community in the years to come.  We must 
also examine our wage and benefit levels for current employees in order to develop a comprehensive 
package which balances current needs and expectations with anticipated cost increases.   
 
Fiscal Impact: Additional meetings will require honorariums be paid to members.  This rate is currently 
set at $40 per member per meeting.  
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

39

http://sisterbaywi.info/


 
 
 
 

40



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 2 

41



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 3 

42



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 4 

43



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 5 

44



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

45



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 7 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

46



Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees Bylaws – Revised and Unapproved 
 

 8 

47



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

48



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 2 

 

 

 

 

 

49



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 3 

50



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 4 

51



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 5 

52



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 6 

53



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 7 

54



Rules of Order & Organization for Sister Bay Committees/Commissions – Revised, Unapproved 

 8 

 

 

 

 

 

55



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 1/14/2014 

Item No. 9 
 
Recommendation: That the Board approve an expenditure not to exceed $12,000.00 to cover expenses 
for advertising and promotional signage in order to mitigate loss of traffic along Bay Shore Drive. 
   
 
Background:  
The Bay Shore Drive Utilities project has caused significant disruption to normal traffic flow in the Si s-
ter Bay Community.  A number of businesses have contacted my office; I am disheartened to learn that 
many are experiencing declines of up to 50% on a YOY basis.  SBAA has requested a coordinated 
promotional effort in order to mitigate these losses.  
 
Fiscal Impact: Up to $12,000 in impact.  This will be divided according to the project formula for divi-
sion, with 20% being born by the Village TIF, and 80% being born by the Utility.   
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

56



57



58



59



60



Media Proposed ad run Ad 

size/time

Placement (pg #)  Price per ad/ 

tot. prog. cost 

Notes

Peninsula 

Pulse

Every other week - Jan-

May (10 wks)

Full color 

inside pg 748.00$                (includes SBAA 15% contract discount)

Full color 1st 

section cover 

pg (below the fold) 620.00$                6,200.00

(includes SBAA 15% discount, and add'l 

5% disc for pre-pay of full 11 week ad 

contract)

DC 

Advocate

Every other week - Jan-

May (5wks)

Full page 

color 1,240.00$             6,200.00

Key to 

Door 

(Alternate with 

Advocate?  5 wks)

Double pg 

spread Center spread $1,540.65 7,703.00

WDOR 215 ads/month 30 sec

75 during am & noon 

news; 140 8a-8p 1,595.00$             1,595.00 includes web ad on WDOR.com

145 ads/month 30 sec

45 during am & noon 

news; 100 8a-8p 1,095.00$             includes web ad on WDOR.com

WLGE

80 ads/month (360 ads 

over 18 weeks) 30 sec No specific times $8.25/ad

60 sec No specific times $12.38/ad 990.00

22,688.00

Construction Advertising Info

Total proposed marketing cost:

61



 
For additional information: http://sisterbaywi.gov 

 
Meeting Date: 1/14/2014 

Item No. 10 
 
Recommendation: That the Board confirm President Lienau’s appointments to fill various vacancies on 
Boards and Committees. 
   
 
Background:  
Current Vacancies: 
 
Economic Development Committee-1 (General) 
 
Marina Fest Committee-1 (Parks Rep) 
 
Marina Committee-1 (Ex Officio) 
 
Zoning Board of Appeals-2(Alternate) 
 
(If Created) 
Members for: 
 
Waterfront Oversight Committee 
 
Employee Benefits Oversight Committee 
 
Other vacancies and replacements as requested 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: None   
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
        
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 

62



Door County
Real Property Listing

Holly M. Hansen
Door County Government Center

421 Nebraska Street
Sturgeon Bay WI 54235

920-746-2287  

2013 Improved

MUNICIPALITY RESIDENT NON RESIDENT TOTAL PARCELS
Baileys Harbor 644 770 1414

46% 54%
Brussels 485 60 545

89% 11%
Clay Banks 181 88 269

67% 33%
Egg Harbor 709 1329 2038

35% 65%
Forestville 505 62 567

89% 11%
Gardner 594 501 1095

54% 46%
Gibraltar 738 1052 1790

41% 59%
Jacksonport 459 425 884

52% 48%
Liberty Grove 1150 1370 2520

46% 54%
Nasewaupee 1148 753 1901

60% 40%
Sevastopol 1325 736 2061

64% 36%
Sturgeon Bay 438 244 682

64% 36%
Union 430 210 640

67% 33%
Washington 463 570 1033

45% 55%
Village of Egg Harbor 233 685 918

25% 75%
Village of Ephraim 229 571 800

29% 71%
Village of Forestville 190 9 199

95% 5%
Village of Sister Bay 483 935 1418

34% 66%
City of Sturgeon Bay 3332 699 4031

83% 17%
TOTAL IMP 2013 13736 11069 24805

55% 45%

63



Door County
Real Property Listing

Holly M. Hansen
Door County Government Center

421 Nebraska Street
Sturgeon Bay WI 54235

920-746-2287  

2013 Parcel Count

MUNICIPALITY RESIDENT NON RESIDENT TOTAL PARCELS
Baileys Harbor 1116 1463 2579

43% 57%
Brussels 936 243 1179

79% 21%
Clay Banks 349 184 533

65% 35%
Egg Harbor 1279 2100 3379

38% 62%
Forestville 992 217 1209

82% 18%
Gardner 1069 835 1904

56% 44%
Gibraltar 1363 1795 3158

43% 57%
Jacksonport 813 780 1593

51% 49%
Liberty Grove 1983 2637 4620

43% 57%
Nasewaupee 2197 1362 3559

62% 38%
Sevastopol 2273 1303 3576

64% 36%
Sturgeon Bay 764 422 1186

64% 36%
Union 730 357 1087

67% 33%
Washington 961 1286 2247

43% 57%
Village of Egg Harbor 419 863 1282

33% 67%
Village of Ephraim 340 708 1048

32% 68%
Village of Forestville 284 24 308

92% 8%
Village of Sister Bay 612 1120 1732

35% 65%
City of Sturgeon Bay 3963 958 4921

81% 19%
TOTAL PARCELS 2013 22443 18657 41100

55% 45%

64



Door County
Real Property Listing

Holly M. Hansen
Door County Government Center

421 Nebraska Street
Sturgeon Bay WI 54235

920-746-2287  

2013 Real Estates Taxes 

MUNICIPALITY RESIDENT NON RESIDENT TOTAL RE TAX
Baileys Harbor $2,045,619.10 $2,867,263.89 $4,912,882.99

42% 58%
Brussels $1,067,110.03 $108,416.59 $1,175,526.62

91% 9%
Clay Banks $575,652.67 $438,689.00 $1,014,341.67

57% 43%
Egg Harbor $2,058,110.76 $3,162,573.21 $5,220,683.97

39% 61%
Forestville $1,167,896.94 $119,637.95 $1,287,534.89

91% 9%
Gardner $1,703,218.88 $1,531,818.98 $3,235,037.86

53% 47%
Gibraltar $2,834,775.83 $4,136,778.83 $6,971,554.66

41% 59%
Jacksonport $1,165,675.78 $1,714,409.50 $2,880,085.28

40% 60%
Liberty Grove $3,579,585.51 $5,592,195.10 $9,171,780.61

39% 61%
Nasewaupee $3,186,175.93 $2,007,748.37 $5,193,924.30

61% 39%
Sevastopol $4,394,965.63 $3,707,781.07 $8,102,746.70

54% 46%
Sturgeon Bay $1,216,126.04 $912,610.88 $2,128,736.92

57% 43%
Union $1,309,180.21 $670,395.69 $1,979,575.90

66% 34%
Washington $1,590,301.39 $2,235,316.05 $3,825,617.44

42% 58%
Village of Egg Harbor $1,100,278.94 $2,651,171.89 $3,751,450.83

29% 71%
Village of Ephraim $1,124,342.85 $2,532,141.45 $3,656,484.30

31% 69%
Village of Forestville $287,184.34 $15,234.89 $302,419.23

95% 5%
Village of Sister Bay $1,856,169.67 $3,203,142.68 $5,059,312.35

37% 63%
City of Sturgeon Bay $12,465,312.54 $4,896,357.85 $17,361,670.39

72% 28%
TOTAL RE TAXES 2013 $44,727,683.04 $42,503,683.87 $87,231,366.91

51% 49%

65



Door County
Real Property Listing

Holly M. Hansen
Door County Government Center

421 Nebraska Street
Sturgeon Bay WI 54235

920-746-2287  

2013 Vacant Land

MUNICIPALITY RESIDENT NON RESIDENT TOTAL PARCELS
Baileys Harbor 472 693 1165

41% 59%
Brussels 451 183 634

71% 29%
Clay Banks 168 96 264

64% 36%
Egg Harbor 570 771 1341

43% 57%
Forestville 487 155 642

76% 24%
Gardner 475 334 809

59% 41%
Gibraltar 625 743 1368

46% 54%
Jacksonport 354 355 709

50% 50%
Liberty Grove 833 1267 2100

40% 60%
Nasewaupee 1049 609 1658

63% 37%
Sevastopol 948 567 1515

63% 37%
Sturgeon Bay 326 178 504

65% 35%
Union 300 147 447

67% 33%
Washington 498 716 1214

41% 59%
Village of Egg Harbor 186 178 364

51% 49%
Village of Ephraim 111 137 248

45% 55%
Village of Forestville 94 15 109

86% 14%
Village of Sister Bay 129 185 314

41% 59%
City of Sturgeon Bay 631 259 890

71% 29%
TOTAL VACANT 2013 8707 7588 16295

53% 47%

66



TAXING DISTRICT

SANITARY

DISTRICTS

SCHOOL

DISTRICTS

2010 Average 

Priced Home

2010

MILL RATE

2010

TAXES

2011 Average 

Priced Home

2011

MILL RATE

2011

TAXES

2012 Average 

Priced Home

2012

MILL RATE

2012

TAXES

2013 Average 

Priced Home

2013

MILL RATE

2013

TAXES

BAILEYS HARBOR GIBRALTAR $192,000 $9.835227 $1,888.36 $194,000 $9.968729 $1,933.93 $195,000 $9.909839 $1,932.42 $195,000 $9.936172 $1,937.55

BRUSSELS SOUTHERN DOOR $129,000 $14.661283 $1,891.31 $129,000 $14.373989 $1,854.24 $130,000 $14.830854 $1,928.01 $131,000 $15.485667 $2,028.62

CLAY BANKS SOUTHERN DOOR $161,000 $14.091964 $2,268.81 $162,000 $13.701584 $2,219.66 $163,000 $13.554136 $2,209.32 $162,000 $14.617507 $2,368.04

EGG HARBOR GIBRALTAR $128,000 $8.264868 $1,057.90 $128,000 $7.918147 $1,013.52 $128,000 $7.758712 $993.12 $128,000 $8.028499 $1,027.65

EGG HARBOR SEVASTOPOL $169,000 $10.477426 $1,770.68 $170,000 $9.860683 $1,676.32 $173,000 $10.178377 $1,760.86 $171,000 $10.360290 $1,771.61

FORESTVILLE
NOT IN

SANITARY SOUTHERN DOOR $113,000 $14.898971 $1,683.58 $114,000 $14.328866 $1,633.49 $114,000 $14.816402 $1,689.07 $115,000 $15.194884 $1,747.41

FORESTVILLE SANITARY SOUTHERN DOOR $87,000 $24.030700 $2,090.67 $88,000 $26.088758 $2,295.81 $88,000 $26.487672 $2,330.92 $89,000 $26.824461 $2,387.38

GARDNER SOUTHERN DOOR $94,000 $17.794138 $1,672.65 $111,000 $13.733653 $1,524.44 $111,000 $14.081466 $1,563.04 $113,000 $14.052776 $1,587.96

GIBRALTAR  GIBRALTAR $218,000 $9.515760 $2,074.44 $218,000 $9.341826 $2,036.52 $217,000 $9.217626 $2,000.22 $217,000 $9.565107 $2,075.63

JACKSONPORT  SEVASTOPOL $142,000 $10.512088 $1,492.72 $143,000 $10.165001 $1,453.60 $144,000 $9.901515 $1,425.82 $146,000 $9.697873 $1,415.89

LIBERTY GROVE SANITARY GIBRALTAR $265,000 $10.846941 $2,874.44 $311,000 $8.522313 $2,650.44 $312,000 $8.748522 $2,729.54 $312,000 $8.683830 $2,709.35

LIBERTY GROVE
NOT IN

SANITARY GIBRALTAR $169,000 $11.160523 $1,886.13 $213,000 $8.468764 $1,803.85 $212,000 $8.802082 $1,866.04 $215,000 $8.738529 $1,878.78

NASEWAUPEE SOUTHERN DOOR $107,000 $14.023718 $1,500.54 $108,000 $13.587384 $1,467.44 $109,000 $13.717448 $1,495.20 $110,000 $13.967239 $1,536.40

SEVASTOPOL SEVASTOPOL $185,000 $10.613878 $1,963.57 $187,000 $10.557913 $1,974.33 $187,000 $10.151858 $1,898.40 $188,000 $10.521331 $1,978.01

SEVASTOPOL STURGEON BAY $220,000 $15.763000 $3,467.86 $215,000 $16.025783 $3,445.54 $214,000 $15.926777 $3,408.33 $214,000 $15.700186 $3,359.84

STURGEON BAY SEVASTOPOL $152,000 $10.891396 $1,655.49 $155,000 $9.788126 $1,517.16 $155,000 $9.300921 $1,441.64 $156,000 $9.555670 $1,490.68

STURGEON BAY SOUTHERN DOOR $136,000 $14.865166 $2,021.66 $137,000 $12.883698 $1,765.07 $137,000 $12.614625 $1,728.20 $137,000 $13.394115 $1,834.99

UNION SOUTHERN DOOR $124,000 $14.349916 $1,779.39 $125,000 $13.218606 $1,652.33 $127,000 $13.613808 $1,728.95 $127,000 $14.111621 $1,792.18

WASHINGTON WASHINGTON ISLAND $169,000 $11.251872 $1,901.57 $169,000 $11.424209 $1,930.69 $169,000 $11.697051 $1,976.80 $168,000 $11.944799 $2,006.73

VILLAGE EGG HARBOR GIBRALTAR $217,000 $10.451568 $2,267.99 $217,000 $10.082294 $2,187.86 $217,000 $10.038973 $2,178.46 $219,000 $10.079061 $2,207.31

VILLAGE EPHRAIM  GIBRALTAR $234,000 $12.907051 $3,020.25 $265,000 $10.791445 $2,859.73 $268,000 $9.864319 $2,643.64 $264,000 $10.217070 $2,697.31

VILLAGE FORESTVILLE SOUTHERN DOOR $89,000 $14.186606 $1,262.61 $90,000 $13.766858 $1,239.02 $90,000 $13.048869 $1,174.40 $91,000 $13.419861 $1,221.21

VILLAGE SISTER BAY GIBRALTAR $213,000 $11.738504 $2,500.30 $210,000 $11.898730 $2,498.73 $206,000 $11.688691 $2,407.87 $202,000 $11.991108 $2,422.20

CITY OF STURGEON BAY SEVASTOPOL $184,000 $16.804496 $3,092.03 $189,000 $16.109810 $3,044.75 $189,000 $15.308023 $2,893.22 $189,000 $16.544302 $3,126.87

CITY OF STURGEON BAY SOUTHERN DOOR $122,000 $20.309033 $2,477.70 $123,000 $19.419226 $2,388.56 $124,000 $19.924702 $2,470.66 $124,000 $20.561840 $2,549.67

CITY OF STURGEON BAY STURGEON BAY $115,000 $22.071860 $2,538.26 $116,000 $21.373086 $2,479.28 $116,000 $22.013837 $2,553.61 $115,000 $21.575123 $2,481.14

DOOR COUNTY TAX RATE COMPARISON
67



 
# BILLS # PARCELS # BILLS # PARCELS #BILLS #PARCELS

2257 2579 175 183 2432 2762

TOWN OF EGG HARBOR 3239 3379 91 97 3330 3476

TOWN OF FORESTVILLE 1139 1209 35 37 1174 1246

TOWN OF GARDNER 1806 1904 30 32 1836 1936

TOWN OF GIBRALTAR 2841 3158 286 293 3127 3451

1538 1593 49 52 1587 1645

4254 4620 268 273 4522 4893

TOWN OF SEVASTOPOL 3335 3576 96 106 3431 3682

TOWN OF STURGEON BAY 1139 1186 44 48 1183 1234

TOWN OF WASHINGTON 2085 2247 132 142 2217 2389

VILLAGE OF EGG HARBOR 1215 1282 82 87 1297 1369

VILLAGE OF EPHRAIM 977 1048 256 259 1233 1307

VILLAGE OF FORESTVILLE 275 308 16 19 291 327

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 1591 1732 353 362 1944 2094

CITY OF STURGEON BAY 4615 4921 748 786 5363 5707

SUBTOTAL 32306 34742 2661 2776 34967 37518

TOWN OF BRUSSELS 1119 1179 66 66 1185 1245

TOWN OF CLAY BANKS 506 533 4 7 510 540

TOWN OF NASEWAUPEE 3388 3559 129 135 3517 3694

TOWN OF UNION 1017 1087 100 101 1117 1188

SUBTOTAL 6030 6358 299 309 6329 6667

38336 41100 2960 3085 41296 44185

TOWN OF LIBERTY GROVE

REAL ESTATE

TOWN OF JACKSONPORT

BOTH INSTALLMENTS COLLECTED BY COUNTY TREASURER:

2013 PARCEL COUNT

TOTALSPERSONAL PROPERTY

TOWN OF BAILEYS HARBOR

MUNICIPALITY

TOTALS

FIRST INSTALLMENT COLLECTED BY LOCAL TREASURER:

Copy of PARCEL COUNT 2013.xls

68



MUNICIPAL

NAME

LAST 

REVALUATION 

YEAR

SCHOOL

DISTRICT

AGGREGATE

RATIO

NET TAX 

RATE PER 

THOUSAND

LOTTERY

CREDIT

FIRST

DOLLAR

CREDIT

TOWNS

BAILEYS HARBOR 2006 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0650 $9.936172 $29.29 $17.20

BRUSSELS 2007 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0002 $15.485667 $100.78 $59.17

CLAY BANKS 2008 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0278 $14.617507 $100.78 $59.17

EGG HARBOR 2009 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0396 $8.028499 $29.29 $17.20

EGG HARBOR 2009 SEVASTOPOL (5130) 1.0396 $10.360290 $55.71 $32.71

FORESTVILLE 2007

SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) -

NOT IN SANITARY DISTRICT 0.9831 $15.194884 $100.78 $59.17

FORESTVILLE 2007

SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) -

SANITARY DISTRICT (702) 0.9831 $26.824461 $100.78 $59.17

GARDNER 2011 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0686 $14.052776 $100.78 $59.17

GIBRALTAR 2005 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0380 $9.565107 $29.29 $17.20

JACKSONPORT 2009 SEVASTOPOL (5130) 1.1327 $9.697873 $55.71 $32.71

LIBERTY GROVE 2011

GIBRALTAR (2114) -

SANITARY DISTRICT (704) 1.0686 $8.683830 $29.29 $17.20

LIBERTY GROVE 2011

GIBRALTAR (2114) -

UTILITY DISTRICT (803) 1.0686 $8.738529 $29.29 $17.20

NASEWAUPEE 2006 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0515 $13.967239 $100.78 $59.17

SEVASTOPOL 2006 SEVASTOPOL (5130) 0.9998 $10.521331 $55.71 $32.71

SEVASTOPOL 2006 STURGEON BAY (5642) 0.9998 $15.700186 $112.15 $65.85

STURGEON BAY 2011 SEVASTOPOL (5130) 1.0772 $9.555670 $55.71 $32.71

STURGEON BAY 2011 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0772 $13.394115 $100.78 $59.17

UNION 2006 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0115 $14.111621 $100.78 $59.17

WASHINGTON 2006 WASHINGTON (6069) 1.0088 $11.944799 $39.06 $22.93

VILLAGES

EGG HARBOR 2009 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0665 $10.079061 $29.29 $17.20

EPHRAIM 2011 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0393 $10.217070 $29.29 $17.20

FORESTVILLE 2004 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.1251 $13.419861 $100.78 $59.15

SISTER BAY 2008 GIBRALTAR (2114) 1.0559 $11.991108 $29.29 $17.20

CITY

STURGEON BAY 2004 SEVASTOPOL (5130) 1.0304 $16.544302 $55.71 $32.71

STURGEON BAY 2004 SOUTHERN DOOR (5457) 1.0304 $20.561840 $100.78 $59.17

STURGEON BAY 2004 STURGEON BAY (5642) 1.0304 $21.575123 $112.15 $65.85

DOOR COUNTY REAL PROPERTY LISTING

2013 TAX RATE SUMMARY

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



1 

2 

3 

4 
5 

6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 

123



- 2 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 
40 
41 
42 
43 
44 
45 
46 
47 
48 
49 
50 

124



- 3 - 

 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 

 29 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\utilities\2013\2013_12\120313 utilities comm minutes - unapproved version 1.doc Created: 30 
11/05/2013 7:32 PM Printed: 1/13/2014 12:08 PM  31 

125




